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an 1 dea.
No little hand s on br east and brow
1'0 k eep th e thrilling love-chords tender.
Th e sterne1' souls would grow m ore stern,
Unfeelin g na tures more inhum an,
A nd man to stoi e coldness turn,
And woman wo uld be less than woman."

( J . G. W hittier)

Pag e Th r ee

believe in Me it wer e better for him that a millstone were hanged
about his neck and that he were drowned in the depth of the
sea ."

Nourished on the same teaching as our Lord, J ames, His
brother, declared that one essential of all r eal r eligion, and
greater than mere creeds and formulari es wa s a devoti on that
issued in the service of the fatherl ess and the wido ws in thei r
affl ict ion. Such service it is that makes life a jOy,death a burst
of splendour and the Judgement a ravishing delight as the ear
ca tches the cadence of the Chr ist voice saying " Inasmuch as ye.
did it to one of the least of these ye did it unto Me." Any religi'bn
is rotten at the core that has no potency in overthrowin g t he
scourges that threaten child life with disaster or t ha t tolerates
vices that may blast the promise of their fair you ng lives.

~he 9FvofuEion of

:A uthor of "The Pioneering Days of S outhern Maoriland." )

jparE t.

BY

REV. M. A. RUGBY PRATT, F.R.Hist.S.

"A dreary place would this ear th be
W ere th ere no little peopl e in it ;
Th e song of li f e would lose i ts mirth
W ere ther e no chi ldre n. t o begin i t .
No little fo rm s, like bud s, to grow ,
A nd m ak e th e adm iring hear t su rrender ,.

llrhe c1Pfory. of lh.e

clPoufft 1 s[and 9!1llefhodisf cprphanage

and (fhi[dren'5 JKome

DEAS have tremendous pot ency. They may be as
destructive as dynamite or as cons t r uct ive as the
imagination of a poet. Sometimes an idea shoots
like a torpedo among our complacent concepts,
shattering dust-covered notions, r evealing new
truths and pointing to fresh avenues of ser vice.
Orphanages are the children of an idea. The idea

itself had its genesis in the heart of the Christ Who taught alike
the value of man and the worth of the child. Our Saviour saw
how , as children grew up, the look of wonder so often fled from
their faces, fear peeped out of their eyes and tears stained their
cheeks. He saw, too, that the cause of it all wa s the blindness
and folly and sin of older folks, and with quivering resentment
He declared "Whoso shall offend one of these little ones which

.' ,

M r. GE OR GE IlO WRON
( H ON . TREASUHER ) .

REV. E DW ARD DR AK E
( DE PUT Y-CHAIRMAN).

.
of c:n!lclnagen1.enf

1934

J poard

Rev. C. E. WARD Mr s. G. BOWRON.
Rev. A. PETERS. Mrs. W. H. SEED.
Rev . lVI . A. RUGBY PRATT, Si st er MABEL MORLEY.

F.R.Hist.S. Mrs. A. HOPPER.

Mr s. M. A. RUGBY PRATT.
Mrs. W. ROWE.
Mrs. C. EATON.
Mr. E. W . HALL.
Mr. W. T. BURLEY.
Mr . F . A. SHEAT.
Mr. F. THOMPSON.
Mr. M. KERSHAW.
Mr. W. DOBBS.
M1'. F. J . CARR.
Mr . H. de R. FLESHER,

M.A. , LL.B.
Mr . W. S. WORNER.
Mr. J . E . PURCHASE, M.A .
Mr. R. W. HAWKE, M.P.

Deputy Chairman : REV. EDWARD DRAKE.

H onora ry Secretary : REV. ARTHUR HOPPER.

Rev. F . T. READ.
Rev. S. BAILEY.
Rev. J. FE AT HE RS TON.
Rev. W . ROWE.
Rev. W. GRIGG.
Rev. J. HARRIS.
Rev. C. B. J ORDAN, M.A., B.D .
Rev. R. RI CHARDS.
Rev. H. RY AN.
Rev. W. E. A. CARR.
Rev. R. E. P AT CHETT .
Rev. J . C. DRAPER.
Rev. H . S. KIN GS.
Rev. W. B. PICKERIN G.

Chairman : REV. CLARE N CE EATON.

Honorar y T'reusur er : Mr. GEORGE BOWRON.

N .B .- A par t from the official m embers of the Board, the names in the three

g-rou p s of ministers, lady member-s and laymen respectively are arranged in the

or der in whi ch they joined the ~oard .

c])o uJE. J s[and l1f1eEhodisEcprphanage and
PAPANDI, CHRISTC HURCH.

R EV. ARTH U R H O P P ER

(H J N . SECR E T AR Y ) .

RE V. CLA RENCE E ATO N
(C H A IR MAN).



Page Five

MAKING A COMME NCE MENT.

On 16th June, 1913, a canvass f or funds wa s determined
upon, the fo llowing being appointed f or the districts indi­
cated :-Nelson and Blenheim, Rev. Henry Bull ; West Coast,
Rev. C. H. Laws; North Cante r bury, Revs . A. P et ers, B. F .
Rothwell, H. E. Bellhouse and A. N. Scotter ; South Canterbury,
Mrs. W. J . Williams; Otago, Rev. W. A. Sinclair ; and Southland,
Rev. lVI . A. Rugby Pratt.

While this effort was proceeding in the South Island, Mr. A.
C. Caughey, of Auckland, and his sister, Mrs. W. H. Smith , now
Mrs. M. Caughey Preston, presented to the Church a com­
modious home occupying a fine site of two and a-half acr es at
Mount Albert, to be used as an orphanage for needy children,

J . Smith, M.L.C., C. E . Sa lter, W. H. Seed, J. L. Scott and R. H.
Turner.

On 13th September, 1912, the Committee held its fir st
meeting in the Durham Street Church parlour. The Rev. C. H.
Laws wa s Chair man and the Conne xional Secretary (R ev.
Henry Bull) wa s convener . At this period the Orphanage Fund
alr eady in exis tence amounted to £1343 . Included in the fun d
was a sum of £500, being a bequest from Mr s. Knox. This latter
sum, with interest accrued. was held in t r ust for the purpose of
an Orphanage in the Provincial District of Auckland.

On 24th October, 1912, the Commit tee resolv ed to r ecom ­
mend the Conf er ence of the following year to establish a Sou t h
Island Orphanage as soon as annual subsc r ipt ions to the extent
of £500 were available for meeting current expenses, provided
that if the scheme for a new Theological College was prosecuted
during 1913 the canvass for the Orphanage be deferred fo r a
year. The Conference adopted the recommendation and also
resolved that the legacy of Mrs. Knox, with interest thereon , be
handed over to the Board of the Wesley Training College to be
used for Orphanage work in harmony with the te r ms of the
bequest and subject to the provisions of Section 29 of the
Methodist Char it able and Educational Trusts Act , 1911. This
money wa s subse quent ly allocated to the Au ckland Orphanage.
The Conf er ence further direct ed that the balance of the moneys
then held for Orphanage purposes be devoted to the proposed

' South Island in st itution, provided t hat no por ti on of the
principal or inter est should be used for curren t expenses. Sister
Mabel Morley was added to the Committee and there wer e
sever al other changes in personnel. Th e Rev. W. A. Sinclair wa s
appointed convene r.

RE V. W . A. S INCL AIR.RE V. C. H. L AWS. B.A.• D.D .

F AC I NG T HE CHALLENGE.

Meanwhile the Confe rence was facing the general challenge
of needy ch ildren. To mark the dawn of the twentieth century
a " Century Commemor at ion Fund" wa s inaugurated in 1899, a
minor purpose of which wa s to provide a modest fund fo r
sta r t ing a Ch ildren's Home and Orphanage. Less than £400 wa s
earmarked for this purpose. The sum was invested until
required for the sche me, and the Rev. Henry Bull and Mr. G. H.
Blackwell were appointed treasurers. In 1901 Conference set up
a Well ington Committee to collect in f or mat ion and to make sug­
gestions as to the best way of inau gur at in g and founding an
Orphanage. The dream was slow to mat eri ali ze, but Conference
persistently affirmed it s conviction of the necessity for such an
institution. In 1912 it affirmed decisively that the time had come
to embark upon definite phi lanthropic work. It set up a Christ­
church committee to collect in f or mat ion and to formulate pro­
posals and directed it to give special consideration to the matter
of establishing an Orphanage. The Commit t ee consisted of the
ministers of the Chr is tchurc h Circuit s, with Messrs G. Bowron,

G. H . Blackwell, G. Barrell, R.
M. Cresswell, W. H . Down, J . A.
F lesher, L. M. Is itt, M.P ., J. C.
Prudhoe, T . T. Robson, Hon. G.

1

Mr. G. H . BL ACKW ELL.RE V. HENRY BU L L.

effects of the war between the Maoris and the white r ac e seri­
ously aff ected the work at Three Kings, led ultimately to the
closing of the Gr ey and Kai Iwi Institutes, and prevented the
set t ing up of the Wellington In stitution. The endowments were
faithfully conser ved and the purposes of the various North
Island trusts were partially fulfilled at Three Kings College
and Wesley College, Paerata. The Wellington properties an d
funds were later compr ised in "The Wellington Native and
Destitute Children 's Educational Trust," now known as the
"Wellingt on Methodist Char it able and Educational Endow­
ments." For the South Island the establishme nt of an Institu­
tion in connection with the mission stat ion at Waikouai ti, under
the Rev. Charles Creed, wa s pr oj ect ed, but wa s ne ver consum ­
mated .

, For . many years the Confer ence had before it various
sche mes. for esta blishing an Orphanage and Industrial School in
the Welling ton Provincial District. There were many legal diffi­
cultie s in the way some of which were r emoved by a deci sion of
the Privy Counc il. The Conference of 1904 urged the
Well ington Trust to establish a Chi ldren's Home, but the
trustees did not see a clear path for some years. Ultimately
they founded the Method ist Childr en's Home, at Masterton,
which wa s opened so recently as 29th October, 1921.

OUR MISSIONARIES AND THE ORP H ANS.

WESLEY AND THE ORP H ANS.
In the eighte ent h century John Wesley recognised the

human wastage represented by children growing up without
loving guardianship, ignor ant of moral standar ds and without
knowledge of God. H e met the sit uat ion with characteristic
a udacity. On his seco nd visit to Newcastle-on-Tyne he bought
a plot of gro und for forty pounds and having twenty-seven
shillings left proceeded to establish an or phanage at a cost of
seven hundred pounds. Man y were posi tive it would never be
fin ished, others tha t he would not liv e to see it completed. H e
wrote in his Journal " I was of another mind ." H e la id the foun ­
da ti on stone on 20th December, 1742, the money came in as he
expected and subsequent ly the place ser ved as a home fo r
t r ai ning deaconesses f or the wider spheres of socia l service.

Ever since Wesley's day Methodism has given attent ion to
the needs of the children and has es tablished hom es and orphan­
ages in all parts of the world. A Chr ist ian orphanage, as t~c

Rev. C. H . Garland once declared , is lik e a Sacrarnent in that It
is an outward and visible sig n of an inward and spiritual grace.
It is a material manifestati on of the r eact ion of the disciple to
t he Saviour's own con cern for t he child . But this visible mani­
f estation .. in subst ant ial bu ildings, well-equipped , efficiently
st a ffed and capably direct ed, strikes its ro ot s deep in hearts that
fee l t he in ner cons t r a int of love f or t he Lord of the little one s.

From the incepti on of the Wesleyan Mission in New Zealand
in 1822 our missionaries have given special care to the educa­
t ion of 'both native and European children. So impressed wa s
the Colonial Government with the success of this work that on
7th October 1844 , Governor FitzRoy granted land at Auckland
to the Church to be held in perpetual trust for a Wesleyan Native
Institution. Several subsequent Crown Grants were made
including a large area at Three Kin gs wh ere Wesley College wa s
established. Th e pro visions of the Trust included t he support
and maintenance of an industrial school for the educat ion of
Maori or half-caste childre n , as well as or phans or destitute
children of European parents.

Sir Ceorge Gr ey la id the f oundation stone of the E stablish­
ment at Three Kings on 5th April, 1848. Its success wa s
immediate and shor t ly afterwards our Church est ablis hed on
similar lines the Gr ey Institut e at Ngamotu, New P lymouth,
and the Kai Iwi Institute, near Wanganui. A f ourth Institute
was contemplat ed for the Wellington District, and in 1852 Si r
George Grey granted to the Chur ch an area, some seventy acres
of which now comprise the Wellington Botanical Gardens. The

Pa ge F oul'
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OUR FIRST ORPH ANAGE FAMILY
(SISTBR ISAllBL AND SISTBR DORA IN CHAHGB).

T o tend th e lon e and f ath erless
Is ange ls ' work bcloto
A nd wo beli ev e Th y word,
Thouph. dim our fa it h //la y be '

IVha te'er fo r Thiue we do, 0 L ord;
IVe do it unto Th ee."

(B ishop IV. IV. Ho w.)

well-bei ng and t he general elevation of the boys and gi rl s
committed as a sacred tr ust to t he ir ca re.

Th e official design ati on of t he establishment is the" Sout h
Island Methodist Or phanage and Children 's Home" and a home
it r eall y is. A home ope ns its arms and its hea r t more wide ly
than do the doors of a mere in sti tution. In a home personal
and individual r elati ons are establis hed and maintained, and
within our walls no in sti tu ti onal aspect is allowed to smother
the human relations of the child wh o r eceives not only care but
love.

ini sfry. of a 9ron1e.
" 0 hearts are b/'uised and dead ,

A nd hom es are bare and cold,
A nd lambs f or w hom the Shepherd bled

Are st ra y ing [rom. the fold.
T o com fo rt. and to bless,
To find a balm [o r woe,

Jpart

OUR FIRST SOU TH ISL AND ORP HA NAGE.

RO M the very incepti on of our wor k t he princ iple has
been la id down tha t the Orph anage is t o be in the
highest sense a Christ ian home, not alone for the
children, but for every mem ber of the staff. The
Board of Managemen t ha s shaped it s policy on the
re~ogniti o.n t hat it is the proper birthright of every

. child admitte d, to share the spir it of r eal home life
III a normal, heal thy and happy env ironment. The manager and
matron and the.ir helper s a r e enjo ine d to keep cons tant ly in the ir
thoughts the hi gh Ideals that should govern all their acts so as
t o promote, in t he surest way, t he ph ysi cal , moral and spirit ua l

S IS TE R MA BEL MORLEY.Mrs . HE NRY HOLL AND , O.B.E .

was discontinued fo r a time. The balance-sh eet fo r the period
ended 31st Decem ber, 1914, presen ted by the t reas urer, Mr. W.
H. Seed, showed assets am ounting to £3859 and a mor tgage debt
of £2000 on the property. Messrs. W. H. Seed, J. C. Prudhoe, J.
A. Flesher and E. W. Hall had already been appointed trustees of
the property and, as t r ust ees, were made permanent members of
the Committee of Management. Mr. E . W. Hall is the only sur­
viving member of the original trust and he now shar es trustee­
ship with Messrs. George Bowron, Frank Thompson, W. S.
Worner and Hubert de Ri e Flesher. Th e fir st Admissions Com­
mittee was appointed on 23rd March, 1914. It consisted of Mrs.
George Bowron , Sist er Grace Cr ump, Revs. Samuel Lawry, C.
H. Laws and lVIr. W. H. Seed . By 30th June, 1914, twelve
children were in residence and their numbers were steadily
increasing. The fir st year of ministry to the chi ldren was
marked with many signs of the blessing of God upon the
ent er prise.

Pag e S ix

THE HOME OPENED.

ir respective of creed. The house wa s enla rged and modernized
at cons ide rable cost and began it s ca reer unhampered by debt on
20th December, 1913, this being t he one hundred and seventy­
first ann iversa ry of the laying of the founda tion stone of John
Wesley's Orphan Hou se at Newcastle-on-Tyne.

Early in 1914 t he Chr is tchurch Committee purchased a
property at Papanui for £2750. The property comprised nearly
five acres of land, together with an almost new house of fourteen
ro oms all on the ground floor. The area was surrounded by
st reets and formed a complet e block. The hou se was of quaint
architecture. Under the guidance of Mr . Roy Lovell-Smith, the
honorary architect, alt erations were made to adapt it to the
purposes of an Orphanage. Accommodation was provided fo r
ab out thirty children . The grounds were a lready tastef ully
planted in old English trees. There were spacious playgro unds
and a detached playroom for the children. A courtyard in the
centre made an admirable play ing area for the t iny tots where
they were under the eye of those at work in the kitchen. A sum
of £750 wa s paid on account of purchase and the ba lance
remained on mortgage for two years. Alt erations cost £325.
The furni shing of the building was carried out by a committee
of ladies at a cost of £261, this sum being cont r ibute d by Metho­
dist women throughout North Canter bury. Th e Confe rence of
1914 added to the Orphanage Committee Mesdames George
Bowron, H . Berry, J. A. Fl esh er, D. Jones, W. H . Seed and C. E.
Salter . Sister Mabel Morley was appoint ed Sister-in-Charge
with Sister Dora Cher rie as her assistant.

The Home was officially opened by Mrs. Henry Holland, the
Mayoress of Chr istchurch , on Saturday, 25th Apri l, 1914, with
six children in r esidenc e. Owing to indisposition Sister Mabel

-was not ab le to take up her duties unti l 1st J uly, 1914, so Sister
Isabel Sinclair temporarily filled the position and lat er was
appointed to canvass the South Islan d circuits in the interests of
the Home. She met with a fine response, but as the Great War
then broke out and patriotic appeals became general t he canvass



They have known unhappiness and want. To som e poverty has
given an ailing body, whilst neglect has engendered undesirable
habits and repression has cowed the spirit. Some come with
minds that are soiled and a disposition that is selfish, disobedient
and passionately rebellious. In the big family of the Home all
alike are loved and tended, and each is watched over as is the
child in the sunny atmosphere of a normal Chr ist ian household.
Here the orphan and the waif are sheltered, nourished and
clothed. The sick child is nursed, the backward child is helped,
the delinquent one is corrected and new direction is given to his
energies, It is little shor t of amazing how readily the children
r espond to discipline exercised with love in a new environment
and a changed atmosphere. Here their educa t ion is watched
over, their aptitudes are noted and their special gifts wisely
developed. All are trained to ea r n a livelihood. Girls are fitted
for useful work and boys are prepared -f or chosen trades and

callings and equipped for self­
supporting and honourable citi­
zenship, All are given a true
knowledge of God and each is
taught that his talents should be
devoted to the service of his
fellow-men. All do not respond
alike to the training, but as they
go out into the world to tackle
life on their own footing most
f eel something of the healing
touch of Jesus and are conscious
of an uplift of ideals. The
heartaches comforted, the tragc­
dies averted, the visions opened
up are not to be told in type or
calculated in the terms of mere
arithmetic. They are written in
the lives of those who are be­
coming good citizens because of
what a Christian home is put­
ting into them in childhood's
days. Even when the young
people leave the Orphanage, the
Manager and Matron keep in
close touch until they at least
attain their majority. They art!
welcomed back as visitors and ,
subj ect to the proper mainte­
nance of discipline, they are,
where necessary, given the con­
tinued shelter of the Home.SOME OF OUR CHILDREN AT PLAY IN PAPANUI PARK.

Paye N ine

Our Home answers the pleading of su ch unprivileged ones
and within its walls the boy or girl sudden ly thrust upon the
world when most needing parental love and care finds what no
mere institution can ever give. Clothing, a bed and food neve r
make a hom e for little ones. Childre n crave parental ministry.
Many pass within our portals from sur roundings far fromideal ,

CRAVING PARENTAL MINISTRY.

unequal to the strain. Now she is making her own acquaintance
with death. There are no friends 01' relatives to care for her
children and she urges that they will be saf e with us. Again
our doors swing open and a f ew days later, with a heart at ease
she passes into the sheltered care of the All-Father, thanking
God for the haven her little ones have found.

Mr. E . W . HALL.Mr. J . C. PRUDHOE.

From a widowed mother in hospital comes the appealing
cry "Will you help me ?" Her hu sband had died two years before,
leaving two bairns to the widow whose physical strength wa s

Many of the most interesting cases admitted cannot be
chronicled lest identification should give pain to innocent little
ones. A few admissions may, however, be cited. Here are five
boys and girls, children of one family. The father is dead.
The mother is a problem to her friends and a perplexity to the
policeman. The children are neglected, ill-nourished, ill-clad
and in sore need of medical attention. Kindly neighbours call
in the physician who takes steps to defend these waifs into
who se lives suffering has bitten so deeply. The children find
shelter within our doors and amidst happier conditions recover
the birthright of which they had been robbed.

A mother, distressed to the. point of despair, sought
entrance for two bright boys, one seven years old, the, other
eight. The father was thought to be overseas. The lads were
admitted and were brought to the Home by the mother. Kissing
them goodbye she bade them not to grieve for her. That night
she took her own life and the Church became both father and
mother to the little lads.

Mr . J. A. F LESHER , O.H .E.Mr, W . H . SEE D.

Since the home opened its doors on 25th April, 1914, with
half a dozen boys and gir ls as its first inmates some three
hundred and fifteen pairs of little f eet have crossed its threshold.
Th e circumstances from which the children have come are very
di verse. Som e have lost loving parents who gave them a good
fo unda t ion for cha rac te r . Others have never known the care of
a Chr ist ian hom e and their lives have been shadowed by want
and by sin . It is a constant wonder to note th e variety of ne eds
re presented by th e childre n for whom shelter is sought . These
young lives have fe lt something of the touch of tragedy. As
the Rev. W. J. Williams once wrote:

OUR RAW MATERIAL.

THE FIRST TRUSTEES OF THE ORPHANAGE PROPERTY

"They did not ask to be born. They had no pow er to
choose the home they should be born in or the habits or
health of their parents. They somehow find themselves in
a world in which , apparently, somet imes there is no room
for them. Lifting little hands t hat a re empty and helpless,
and with no language but the cry in whi ch the hunger for
mother and hom e finds expression, they come knocking at
the door and waiting to be taken in."

Page E igh t
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THE STAFF AND ITS ROUTINE.

vasser . Wh en Sister Mab el fo und it necessary to r esign in 1920
throug h fa ilure of heal th, Mr. and Mr s. J . G. W. E llis were
appointed Master and Matron. They, in t urn, were succeeded
in 1923 by Mr. and Mr s. F. J. Butler , who also maintained a high
st anda r d in t he managem ent of the ir numerous family.

In 1926 Mr. and Mr s. A. E. H ayn es were appointed Manager
and Matron. Mr. H ayn es was an old Ar my Medical Cor ps man
of wid e exper ience, and Mrs. Haynes a sy mp athetic and under ­
standing mother rather t han a matron. They came to their pre­
sent sphere of ministry after havin g pr oved their worth in home
mi ssion work and in ot he r departmen ts of Chr ist ian service . In
their ca pable hands and with their wise blending of love and
discipline they sustain the very best traditi ons of the home and
ar e esp ecially well qualifi ed to ca r ry on the spir it ual education
of the ch ildren. The Manager conducts pray ers at the morning
and evening meals. In his abse nce t he Matron officiates, or other
satisfactory arrangements are made. A chief f act or in the
success of the work is the mainten ance of t he family a ltar .
These devotional exercises morning and even ing do mu ch to
maintain discipline and good behaviour while the spir it of self ­
help and mutual help , fo stered by means of lit tl e du ti es enf orced,
and specific task s assigned, cont ri butes in a large measure t o the
cleanliness, the orderliness and the fine esprit de corps manif est
in a ll the life of the home.

A willing st aff suppor ts the Manager and Matro n in the
proper cont r ol and super vision of t he children. The staff is
appointed in the ratio of one adult to eve ry t en children and all
look upon their task as a voca t ion . The Matr on keeps in close
touch with the Ladies' House Committee, which is composed of
lady members of the Board of Managemen t and which visits the
'Or phanage ever y month, and gives its support and guidance in

" matJer s affecting the equipment and working of the home, staff
ch"anges and sp ecial dom esti c expenditure. Of this Committee,
from the commence ment, Mrs. G. Bowron has been the ca pable
leader. Som e members of the staff have ser ved for long periods.
the senior member being Miss Ash crof t , who has exe rc ised :l

gracious ministry as sewing mi stress and assistant for t he last
fifteen years. The successive ministers of our Papanui Chu rch
have all given out standing assist ance to the Home. The various
ministers who hav e act ed as secretar ies to t he Board have also
rendered conspicuous service.

Rul es ther e mu st be and some r estrictions in a family gro up

Mrs . A . E . HAYNES.Mr. A. E . H A YNES.

On 17th March , 1926, the Or ph anage and its inmate s had a
merciful escape from disaster. The household numbering sixty
people had just come indoor s fo r t he evening meal in t he dining
room when a Defenc e Depar tment 's Br istol Fighter ae roplane
containing three persons crashed into the gro unds, diving nose
fir st on to a ga r den plot . It grazed t he end of the glasshouse
and had barely ro om to fa ll without demolishing t he main
building. Th e pil ot wa s kill ed , a mechanic fata lly wounded, and
the other occupant severely injured. Th e only two person s who
witnessed the actual impact wer e an orphanage boy and gir l
who were r eporting late for tea. The girl immedi at ely sped
indoors for the st aff to telephone f or the ambulance, and t he boy,
a lad of twelve, plu ckil y rush ed to the ruined pla ne to help to
ext r icate the dying and injured survivors f r om the twisted
wreckage.

The Home has been well served by it s princip als and the ir
helpers. For six years Sister Mabel Morley ministered to the
needs of the children committed to her ca re with unwearied zeal
and devotion. For a t ime she was assisted by Sister Dora Cher r ie
and Sister May Barnett, wi th Sister Isab el Sinclair as field can-

OUR MANAG,ER AND MATRON.

drill, which exercises contribute materially to the well-being of
our wards.

in the homes of our people. Many have gone out to ea rn t hei r
own livelihood in va r ious occupations . A f ew were carried 'out
silent ly over our t hreshold to find welcome in the hom e where
no bud of promi se dies. In t he last te n yea r s only one child has
'died, and he a little lad who, when brought t o us, was sadly
handicapped in heal th and physique. It gives ground for gra t i­
t ude that in so large a family, constit uted as is this one, the
heal th regi st er is so remar kably good and t he mortality rate so
low, especially when on e cons iders t hat in t he general epidemi cs
of 1917 eleve n of our childre n contracted diphtheria and ten
were str icken wi th sca r let f ever. The influenza epidemic of 1918
also visited the Home, bu t a ll came safely through. No ser ious
sickness has been ex perience d in recent yea rs.

In this connection we owe a debt of gr at itude to our
honorary ph ysicians, Dr . A. J. Orchard and Dr. J. P. Whetter,
who have stood by us throug h all our hist ory. Mr. Sevicke­
J ones has also placed us under obligation f or hi s services as our
honorary opt ician, while t he Dental Department at the General
Hospital has re ndered most va lua ble grat uit ous service in caring
fo r the teeth of the children. Thanks are a lso du e to Mr. Char les
Buckett fo r painstaking work in gy mnastics and in physical

A GRO UP OF OUR HAPPY HOPEFULS.

A WORTHY RECORD.

The transference of our activit ies f rom the old dwe lling to
the new is an event t hat breaks the mon otony of the years. It
puts a momentary arrest upon t he whee ls and pulses of our lif e,
and, as t he normal movement slows down , bids us try to spell
out t he significance of t he years. We have to iled up to an emin­
ence. But the heigh t now attained does not mark t he summit of
our ai m; it is simp ly a vantage point from whic h we may survey
the fields we have traversed since t he morning dawn of our
fo undat ion, and whenc e, too, we may gaze across the regions
t hat lie to wa rds t he shadowy f ut ure. Our yesterdays have mad e
us t r us tees of a noble heri tage. The to-morrows are alread y
flinging out t he ir challenge. Let us scan our past r ecord and
g ive a glance at t he f uture as it ru shes to meet us.

The Home has st ill six months to run before it will attain
its majori ty. Yet in the per iod of our service some two hu ndred
and fifty-t wo children ha ve been discharged and sixty-three st ill
re main with us. A certa in proportion entered only f or short
per iods, ot hers have remained fo r years. Some have been
cla imed by or returned to relatives. Some have fo und ad opti on
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of j progress.

. Meanwhile there eme rged the problem of the senior boys.
ThI S problem also confronted our Orphan age author it ies in
Aucklan~. r:r:he Chr istchurc h Commit tee a ffi r med the desi r abili ty
of estab lishing a hostel for the bigger boys of all our Or phan­
ages In or near one of t he four principal cities so th at they mi gh t
be trained for industrial, commerc ia l or professional life. It
wa s also cons ide re d that boys who 'were to learn f arming should
be sent to Wesley Training College, at Paerata. As a tem porary

expedient a r r angements were
made for some of the olde r lads
to be boa r ded a t the P resby­
te r ian Boys' Home. This
arrangement proved no perma­
nent solution of our own prob­
lem and we began to env isage a
scheme t hat would sat isfy all
reasonable r equirements. In
1924 a property in Harewood
Roa d, almost opposite the exist­
ing Or phanage, and comprising
eleven acres, was pu r chased as
a site for f ut ure ac t ivities. The
following year" an adjoin ing
property of over an acre wa s
acquired giving us a frontage
also on Matson's Road . The
t ime was not ri pe nor were our
resources equa l to t he erection
of comp lete new premi ses. The
ex pans ion of the work com­
pelled us, in 1925, to provide a
new wi ng at a cost of £433 to
afford acco mmodation for 12
addit ional children .

The passing of the years saw
our gir ls a lso gro wing up and
the ne ed was considered f or
providing more effective hostel
accommoda t ion for t hose wor k-

erR- 9Record
" Thin e are all t he gif ts, Thine the brok en bread,

L et. th e na~ed f eet be shod and the h ungr y f ed;
L et Thy children. by T hy grace give all th ey abound,
T ill th e poor ha ve br eath.inq spuce and th e lost are

f ound ." ( J . G. lVhittier .)

'lDcrrl

A GROUP OF INTERMEDIATES.

EFORE the Orphanage had been open t wo years the
number of children in residence had increa sed to
t wenty-nine and the Committee was compelled to
face a sche me of extens ion to provid e accommoda­
t ion f or approximately sixty children. Th e scheme
wa s carr ied through in 1917, at a cost of £1850, and
two years later the enro lment of children

totalled fifty-six.

T
';·..;'"·..r
~

a r ranged. An occasiona l picnic or holiday outing gives the spice
of variety to the r outine of life.

By many of our Cant er bur y Chur ches the harvest thanks­
giving exhibits are handed over to the Orphanage. At Christ­
mas time Sunday schools and congregations arrange Orphanage
gift days. Th e toys and other gifts presented furnish a store for
the annual Chr istmas tree and leave something over for the cele ­
br ation of individua l bir thdays throughout the year. Again at
Christmas ti me country homes are opened to some of the
ch ildre n while others are quartered at Sumner, New Brighton
or Quail Island. The Automobile Association arranges an annual
outing and in vitati ons a re gi ven to visit various shows and enter­
ta inments. All these give joy to our children and contribute t o
t he ir life's development.

T
Jlll
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LITTLE CASKE TS OF POSSIB ILIT IES.

of sixty boys and girls of va rying ages and differing tempera­
men ts, but expression , and not r epression, is the chief r ule of the
home, and it s life Is full of joyous f reedom. The Orphanage da y
begins at six in the morning and closes at eight in the even ing.
Ample time is gi ven for home lessons and fo r play. P unctua lity
mu st be observed alike by th- staff and the children, who all live
an active life t hro ugh days that are profitably employed. The
Manager and Matro n find t ime to give kindly individual counsel
to the uni t s of thei r la rge family and t o train them for the
Su nday School Union examinations in which our children always
take high place in the pr ize lists. The attendance of ch ildren
at Churc h se rvices and Sun day school sessions appropr iate to
their ages is required, while fo r child ren who do not attend the
evening se rv ice happy and pro fitab le Sunday even ings mu st be
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Mrs. W. J . WILLIAMS.

shows how wide is the sweep of in terest in our min istry to
unprivileged childhoo d.

From North Island estates t he fo llowing bequ ests have been
r eceived :-Mrs. Fairhurst (P almerston Nor th) , £500 ; Mr.
George Winstone (Auckland) , £250 ; Li ssie Ra thbone (Wai­
pawa ) , £250; Nathaniel iDear (Rongote a ), £25 ; Sara Andrew
(Palmerston North ) , £10 (to be in crea sed upon reali sation of
the asset s in the estate ) .

Two large bequ ests that ma de our new Home possible were
£6474 from the es ta te of Mr . William Morrow of Ashburton, and
£479<1 f rom the esta te of Miss Sarah Ussh er of Nelson . Two
other As hbur ton bequ ests were £975 f r om Mr. Duncan
McKenzi e and £100 from Mr. Alex McKenzi e. Mr. Thomas
Brooks of Ellesm ere left us £250 ; Mr. George Sheat of Dun­
sande l, £5 0 ; Mr. E . Holdgate of T'imaru , £50 ; Miss E. A. Chase
of Oamaru, £250. Waimate bequ ests have come f rom the estat es
of the late Mr. W. F. Chever ton, £516 ; Richard Meredith, £500 :
and T. W. Cr one, £50.

Th e t r ustees in t he estate of the la te Mr . Alex Cowie
(Christchurch) have made eleven annua l gifts to talling £550.
Other Chr istchurch lega cies have been as follow:-Mrs. E. C.
Jordan, £711 ; Mrs. Gunnell, £500 ; Harriett Bu tt , £400; Theresa
Wisker, £276; Lil y Richter, £270 ; J ames Rowe, £226 ; Ada
Smith, £224 ; James Livingstone, £165 ; S. T. Cox, £150 ; Mrs. H.

T. Da vis, Miss Butterick, A. A.
Oldham, E thel M. Scott, J essie
Kean and Mar t ha White, £100
eac h ; Albert Philpott, S. R.
Bennett, W. D. Marks, Rev. S.
La wry, Mrs. Harvey and Miss
Kitchingman, £50 each ; Miss
Elizabeth Slater, £40; E. A.
Wallace, £3 5 ; Am elia Smith,
£32 ; A. T. Cuming, £30 ; Mrs.
Heward, Thomas Flesh er and
Albert Queree, £25 each; J ames
Sinclair, £20; Elizabeth Harris,
£20 ; Ellen Wallace, £8, and
Elizabeth P earce, £7.

From Otago and Southland
bequ ests have come in good
number. Miss Alice Broom­
field, of Balclutha, left us £569
and Mr. R. J. Tanner, of Eden­
dal e, £250. Dunedin legacies in-
clude J . W. Commiss iong, £306;
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Mrs . W. H. SEED.

A TRIO OF ELECT LADIES.

Mrs. G. BOWRON.

GENEROUS HELPERS.

The app eal for t he children has, f ro m the very commence ­
ment of our work, touched a r esponsi ve chord in the hearts of
our people. Generous gifts have come f rom many, including t he
Ballantyne family of Chr istc hurch, Mr. James Fl eck of Ri ver­
t on, Mr. W. S. Warner of Southbridge, Mr. and Mrs. Lane of
Rangiora, Mrs. C. Baker of Ashburton, and Mr. James Smith,
Mr. A. Borrows, Mrs. J. Campbell and Mrs. Loui sa Baker of
Chr istchurch .

The Orphanage had only been open two mon ths when it
r eceived its first bequ est. This wa s a sum of £150 from the
estate of Mr. Char les Beasley Abel , and wa s earmarked for the
Maintenanc.e Fund. The first gift of £50 for the endowment of
a cot was in memory of the late Mr. Char les Duke of Dunedin,
and was soon followed by another of a similar amount from the
same city in memory of Mr. George Ta yler, who had been a
young worker in Trinity School. A cons tant st re am of generous
bequests ha s cont inued to flow in to our treasury both for main­
tenance and for the Endowment and Building Fund. One
pleas ing feature about these bequests is the large number, small
in amount, that have been left by people who , out of very limited
resources have mad e some provision f or our work wh en making
their will s. The geogr aphica l di stributi on of our benefactors

..

is an at tractive livin g room f or the evenings, toget her wit]
necessary bathroom facilities . The building was so designed
t hat it can be easily conver te d in to a modern family dw elling
when we move in t o our permanent quarters. The old building
with it s va r ious addi ti ons is not a mod el of a r rangement. It has
proved inadequ a te to meet all the demands of our wor k and the
property will be offered f or sale as soon as possession is taken
of the new premi ses.

The average number of children pr ovided for in the Home
during the whole period of its exis te nce has been ' fifty, and the
maintenance of this large family ha s cost the Church £30,000,
apart from capital expenditure on land and buildings. For some
of the children part board is paid, but that does not apply to the
majority.

A PO RTION OF OUR BIG FAMILY AT PAPANUr.

ing in the city or changing situations. In 1927 sixty-t hree
child re n were un der ou r roof and ni ne of our older boys were
lodging at a sister institution. It then occurred to us that it
would be a better t hing for t hese working lads on t he t hreshold
of manhood to sha re in the ordinary pr ivate home lif e of our
own Methodist famili es. Homes were at once offered and wit h
gratifying result s t hese yo uths have, for seven years, bee n
boar ded with refined Christian people. He re they come to know
t he normal back-ground of fam ily life as it is enjoyed by the
average child of t he Church.

Su ch an arran gement did not cove r the case of adol escen t
lad s. For these, in 1930, a bungalow wa s built within the
Or phanage grounds to provid e sleeping accommodation for eight
senior boys and quarters fo r the officer in charge. Here there
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REV. W . BAUMBER.REV. SAMUEL LA WRY.

The Home and the Church are greatly indebted to Mr.
George Bowron, who for over eig hteen years has been our hon­
orary treasurer. During these years he has steadily pursued the
ideal now neari ng reali sat ion . He has toi led un obt r usively and
with self-effacing devotion and ha s persistently refused all recog­
ni ti on of hi s labour of love. To-day his chief emot ion is that of
gratitude for the privilege of a service that has proved a saving
and blessed enrich ment to his own spir it , a sheer joy to hi s
colleagues and a benediction to t he ch ild ren within the shelter of
t he Home.

A QUA RTETTE OF MINISTERIAL HELPERS.

REV. W. LAYCOCK.REV. W. J . WILLIAMS.

names are written on high. But less than j ustice would be done
did we fa il to pay a trib ute to the work of the lat e Mr. W. H.
Seed and the lat e Mr. J. A. Flesh er , who in t he fo undational
days and long after were ceaseless in their zeal on behalf of our
ca use. From the genesis of t he Orphanage un til to -day three
lad ies have also been outstanding in un broken service, and a gar­
land of gratitude is laid at the f eet of Mrs. Bowron, the lead er of
t he House Committee, and Mrs. W. H. Seed and Sister Mabel
Morley. These elect ladies a re an in spi r ati on to their colleagues
on the committee.

OPPORTUNITY AND SERVICE.

F or those who desire to do something specific in the
int erests of the home and it s young inmates it may be stated
t hat a sum of £50 0 will maintain a child fo r all t ime, and a sum
of £250 will maintain a cot and clot he and educa te a child in
perpetuity. A single gift of £30 will provide she lter, food and
clot hing for a child for one year .

F or cur rent r unning costs we need an income of at least
£2 000 a year from the circ uits of the South Island. To many
circuit and dist ri ct sec retar ies we are indebted f or devot ed wor k,
as well as to the circuit committees t hat wer e set up by Sister
Isabel Sincla ir, t he Revs. William Laycock and F. T. Read to
susta in interest in and collect subsc r ipt ions fo r our work. These
field organise rs r endered outstanding service alike in stimu ­
lating circ uit workers and in secur ing financial support. No
field organiser has bee n appo inte d since 1932. With t he r~tur.n

of more prospero us times we shall need to r ecreate our circuit
organisation, when it is anticipated t hat the needs of our work
will evoke a ready and mor e gene ral response f ro m the r ank and
file of our people.

During the r ecent years of depression substantial assist ance
has resulted f rom the annua l Or phanage Day Street Appeal ,
which is sanctione d by the Chr istc hurch City Counci l and
or ganised by r epr esent atives of the ~nglican ~ Presbyteri~Io1 an?
Methodist Orphanages and a committee of mter~sted citizens .
The Avonside Girls' Hi gh School r ecen tl y sent a gift of £15. In _
most circuits there is a Christmas collection fo r our work. Many
congregat ions arrange an "egg dr ive," wh~n hundI~eds of doze~s
of eggs are collected. Others under take jam-making to ~o~tn­
bute to the ton and a-half annua lly cons umed, and f or this pur­
pose cases of empty jars are sent to wi~ely scattered place~.

Sacks of potatoes are collected t o .r eplenish the stores of this
commodity which are cons ume d at the rat e of ab out a t on every
t en weeks. Gifts of f uel and veget ables a re eve r we lcome, as
are the proceeds of to wel days occasionally arranged by Bible
Classes and of handkerchi ef and to ilet-soap days arranged .by
Sunday' schoo ls and yo ung people's societies . Most va lued assist­
ance comes from Ladies' Guilds, which arrange sa les and ga r den
part ies and also give r egul ar assistance in darning and sewmg
f or our numer ous f amily. Mr. H . Hampton f or many years ~as

helped us by taking photographs to illust rat e.our annua l publica­
tions.

It would be im possible to catalogue t he names of those who,
all th rough the years, have r endered valuable an d ~.mo~tentatio~s
ser vice on t he Board of Managem ent and in the circuits. Their

Mr. GE OR GE WINSTONE.M~. W IL L IAM MO R RO W .

John Scott £263 ; Mrs. Eastabrook, £250 ; Mr s. D. Haynes,
£200 ; W. H. Duk e, E llen Foster and Mr s. P eter Chr ist ie, £100
each; J. H. Brown, £50 ; J an et Cameron, £50 ; Margaret E lliott,
£34; an d Mrs. J. W. Roberts, £10. Invercargill beq uests have
come from t he estates of E llen May Smith, £319; Miss E. G.
Cheyne, £50; Alex Hardy, £50; and J . J. Wesney, £25 .

TWO LOVERS OF THE CH ILDRE N.
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The aggregate sum derived from testamentary beq uests is
very conside rable and the practice of inclu din g t he \h~phanages

in their wills is growing amongst our people. In ad dition to the
amounts already r eceived in legacies the treasurers have had
advice that benefits may be expected from the estates of the late
Revs. W. S. Potter and T. W. Newbold, Messrs. G. R. George,
J am es Kirby, Chr is t ian Schm idt, William T ucker, Sarnpson­
Uren, J . C. Waby and \V. Westaway, and Mesdames McI nnes,
Emma Welch and A. B. C. Wills.

These bequests are in many cases subj ect to lif e int er est s,
consequent ly benefit s may not accrue to us for many years. In
some cases also the payment of bequ ests is cont ingent upon the
realisat ion of assets in the estat es concerned.
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stone of the Boys ' Home on the east wi ng in commemoration of
the fo un ders and benefactors of the inst itu ti on. Addresses were
g ive n ?y the Chair man, by Hi s Excellency Lo rd Bled isloe, Hi s
Wor shi p the Mayor (Mr. D. G. Sullivan, lVI.P .) , and Messrs.
Henry Holland, M.P., a nd R. W.Hawke, lVI.P. The Rev. EdwarG
Drake, Deputy Cha ir man of the Board, and the Rev. A. Hopper,
to both of whom a tribute is du e fo r faithful and zealous ser vice
also pa rticipated in the f unction, which was concluded by ~
luncheon a r r a nged for by the ladies of the Board . Since the new
building sche me has been under cons ide ration th ree member s of
t he Board, the Rev. Samuel Lawry, Mr. J. Lomas and Mr..1.
Gilmour have been call ed to t he ir r eward.

Building operations have proceeded witho ut in ter rupt ion
and the new Home and Orphanage will be officia lly ope ned on
9th November, 1934, by the Presiden t of the Conference t he
Rev. Cla re nce Eaton, who is al so Cha ir man of the Orphanag«
Board. Prior to the opening a ser vice of thanksgi ving will be

LORD BLEDISLOE SPEAKING AFTER THE STONE-LAYING.
INSET: LADY BLEDISLOE K ISSING AN ORPHANAGE LASSIE.HER EXCELLENCY LADY BLEDISLOE.

gave it s approval to the plans and specifications. Te nders we re
at once ca lled, that of Mr . R. C. Jamieson being accepted at
£18,3 73, plus £65 to cover the cost of a lterations made in the
pla ns subsequent to te nde rs bei ng advertised for. Provision was
al so made fo r t he expenditure of a f urther sum of £500 for an
electric pump a nd r efri ger a tor and fo r specia l cover ing fo r the
r oof sho uld t his la st be fo und necessary.

The sto ne-laying ceremony was fixed for 10th November
1933. His Excellen cy t he Governor-Gen er al Lor d Bled isloe'
~.C. , G.C.M .G. , K.B.E., D.S c., had consented to lay the founda~
t ion stone of the central administr ative block . He was accom­
panied by Lady Bledi sloe, and the ir Excellen cies were welcom ed
by the Rev. Cla rence E aton , Chair ma n of the Boar d. Beauti ful
bouquets were presented by children of t he Home t o Lady
Bledisloe , Mrs. J. A. Flesher and Mrs. M. A. Ru gb y Pratt. A
large gathering of cit izens, chur ch peopl e and representative
public men assembled. The Rev. M. A. Ru gb y P r at t Con-
nexi onal Secretary and Ex-Presi- '
dent of the Confe re nce, laid the
stone of the Girls ' Home, which
constitutes the west wing of
the st r uct ur e, in commemo ra­
ti on of t he ope ning of t he
first Orph anage on 25th April,
1914. Mrs. J . A. F lesher lai d the

TAKING EFFECTIVE ACTION.

It was with an awed sense of the Di vine presence and guid­
ance that, on 2nd August, 1933, the Orphanage trustees gave
formal con sent to and approval of the proposal to build; that .
the Board of Management immediately thereafter resolved to
proceed and the Ch ur ch Building and Loan Fund Committee

A.N.Z.I.A, later prepared their estimates, and on 10th August ,
1932, Mr. Bowron reported that the whole scheme would prob­
ably involve an expenditure of £19,137 for the new buildings.
Action was again deferred, excepting that authority was given
for the grounds to be laid out, lawns prepared, trees planted,
roads laid down and a brick and wrought iron fence and
wrought iron gates erected along three cha ins of the Harewood
Road frontage. In this preparatory work Messrs. M. Kershaw,
,F . J. Carr, A. E. Haynes and others took a most helpful part.
Meanwhile events were moving and the officer s of the Board and
a few of its members were conferring. As a consequence on
14th June, 1933, the Board of Management resolved that subject
to the granting of a fifty per cent. wages ' subsidy by the
Unemployment Board, under its building scheme, prompt st eps
be taken to call for tenders for erecting the building. A special
committee was set up to make representations. The utmost t he
Unemployment Board would do was to grant a subsidy of one
third of the amount spent on wages. This would leave our fund
£1500 short of the amount that would enable us to proceed with
saf ety . The matter lay heavily on the heart of the treasurer
when, under the impulse of what he, and we all, recognised as a
Divine prompting, he wrote to Mrs. Ca ughey Preston, of Auck­
land. This large-hearted and philanthropic lady similarly felt
the 'H oly Spirit's urge to action , and in a few days there came
her cheque for £1500 to bridge the difference between the money
in sight and the sum required before a start would be made with
the proposed buildings.

J f crcinq lhe J fulur e

PLANNING FOR
ADVANCE.

In November, 1930,
plans for a new Or­
phanage were prepared,
bu t definite action was
postponed. The associ­
ated architects, Mr. G. T.
Lucas, A.N.Z.I.A. , and
Mr. Melvill e Lawry,

~l orl 4.

" H e uih.o gives a child a treat
Mak es joybells rin g in H eav en's street,
A nd. he who gives a child a home
Builds palaces in K ingdom Come ."

(John Masefield. }

Mrs . M. CAUGHEY PRESTON
AN AU CKLAND BENEFACTRESS
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~'!!!!!!!GIOR many years past t he Boa rd of Managem ent has
endeavoure d to set aside all moneys r eceived from
legacies , together with a number of specia l dona­
t ions , f or a n endowment towards the building of a
new H om e at a t ime wh en there should occur a con­
junction of t hree se ts of circ ums ta nce. First there
sho uld be t he pressure of n ecessity, and this has

lon g been felt . Second the re sho uld be the opportune hour for
t he str ik ing of which we ha ve pati ently waited. Third there
sho uld be resources adequate to meet building and furni shing
r equirem en ts witho ut lea vin g an undue burden of debt to
hamper the Boa rd in meet ing the hea vy cos ts of suppor t ing ou r
large a nd growing fami ly an d maintaining our property. The
f und has grown with the passing years and has been in creased by

its interest ea r nings , al­
t ho ugh, of recent years,
we have f ound it neces­
sa ry to draw tosome ex­
te n t upon such earnings
to meet current expendi­
t ure because of the de­
cline of revenue from
cir cuit subscriptions and
collections.
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OU R CHURC H AT PAPANUI.

At the back of the !li~in building is a concrete tank to supply
water .t o the whole building. It stands on a pedestal fifty-five
feet ~lgh and hold s 6700 gallons drawn by electr ic motor f ro m
arteaian sources. An av enue of chestnut trees j oin s up with the
cart e~trance. from Matson' s Road. Nea r to t he building are
extensive drying grounds and beyond these are broad playing
a~'eas , a large or chard well stocked wi th f r uit t rees, and adequate
kitchen gardens . Provision is also bein g mad e fo r t ennis cour ts
so that the Home childr en may share recreational lif e with the
r oung peopl e o~ our Papa nui Churc h. Wh en finan ces permit it
IS hop ed to build a gymnasium on t he fiat r oof of eac h of t he
dormitory blocks.

WH ERE OUR CHILDRE N WORSHIP.

spersed with the delicate blu e myosoti s. Hundreds of r ose­
bushes and other plants give promi se of coming beauty and
fragrance.

OUR SUNDAY SC HOO L AT PAPANUI.

REV. M. A. RU GB Y PRAT T .

But before examining the grounds and the home itself let
the eye take a wider sw eep. Close "at hand ri ses the gracef ul
spir e of our Papanui Church, beside which stands the modern
Sunday School in which these young wards of t he church mingle
without distinction with the scholars drawn from the homes of
our peopl e. Orchards and market gardens which meet the needs
of the city lie beyond the fringe of nea t subur ba n dwellin gs in
the r esidential quarter of Papanui. Away to the north the in ­
land Kaikouras lift their maj estic peaks, while to the south an d
east the snow-clad line of the Southern Alps glis te ns in the
sunlight .

Two acres in front of the building are laid out in lawns, r ose
plots, flower bed s and borders. There are hedges of olearia and
a wide range of native and imported shr ubs. Horizontal elms,
ribbonwoods, specimen trees, limes, flowering cher r y and ot her
trees abound. Over five thousand bulbs have been planted .
There is a beautiful mauve bed filled with hyacinths, irises and
scabiosa. A yellow bed has in it the golden ash, golden city,
golden forsythia, with yellow cypress and yellow tulips a ll inter-

place presents a st r iking appearance as one ente rs the im posing
gateway and advances along a drive that balloons across the
whole front of the building.

Mrs . J . A. FLESHEIl.

THE PARTICIPANTS IN THE STONE-LAYING CE RE MONY.

HIS EXCELLENCY LO RD Il LEDISLOE.
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THE LOCATION OF THE HOME.

The new H ome is pro bably the finest Orphanage building in
the Dominio n, and it should fill t he heart of every Methodist
wi th wor thy pride. Wh en full it will accommodate one hundred
children and the necessa r y staff. Good use has been made of
the twelve-acre site on which the building stands , and utmost
pains have been taken to ens ure t he provision of congenial sur ­
ro undings fo r t he children. .

The building is set in spacious gr ounds almost opposite t o
the H ome that has sheltered so man y needy children for nearly
twenty-one years. It lies diagonally across t he property and
faces du e north to get f ullest advantage of the suns hine . Th e

held in our Papanui Church, which st ands near by. It is confi­
dently hop ed and ant icipated that, wh en the President swings
the doors open, the wh ole enter pr ise will be free of debt. It will
t hen becom e the duty of t he Board and the privilege of our
people, by generous gifts and by legacies and bequ ests, to build
up an Endowment Fund of many thousands of pounds to meet
maintenance charges and to pr ovid e f or needed extens ions in
years to come .
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THE CONCLUSION OF THE MATTER.

is a large reception room with a fine homely fireplace in Mount
Som ers stone . Adjacent to the sleeping quarters of the Manager
and Matron is an airy sick room wh ich will be equipped with all
necessary conveniences.

The well-lighted general dining room, 29 by 40 feet in size,
is approached by separate entrances for the girls and boy s. This
room is admirably suited for enter ta inment purposes. The
kitchen will contain every mod ern convenience including a
r efrigerator, ben ch es, sinks and other equipment. For cooking
t he most mod ern plant in the Dominion is provided in two Aga
cookers and heaters which are ent irely new to t h is country. The
pantry, and the storeroom, in which is placed t he refrigerator
motor, will both be taxed to the ext ent of their capacity .

In the laundry are the tubs, copp er and electric washer. The
drying room and ironing room are conveniently situated.
Electric light and power points for cleaning purposes are pro­
vided throughout the buildings, which are serv ed with hot and
cold water right t hro ugh. Th e building has a system of cent r al
heating by hot air driven from a boiler house in the basement at
the rear of the administrative block. The boiler is fired with an
automatic stoker controlled by a thermostat. The waste heat
from the flues and boiler is utilized for drying clothing and house
linen in wet weather.

Everything about t he building is good, but not
extravagantly so. The structure and it s eq uip ment are meant
to last , and when one remembers t hat whereas t he average
house shelters but one growing family, t he Orphanage will have
a ceaseless succession of young families of very large propor­
tions, justification will be found for every penny of expenditure.

Into our hands God has put fine facilit ies for doing our
work. From all over t he South Island , irrespective of creed,
there will pass through our opening doors a procession
of children who are heirs of all the yesterdays and
prophets of all the to -morrows. At the heart of
every one of them lie nebulous thoughts and aspirations and
purposes. Let us see to it that in the precious, fleeting years
these pla stic personalities remain in our care we not only trans­
for m them into cit izens healthy in body and with their intellect
sha rpened for life's duties, but that we shape them in self -con­
trol , mould them in moral beauty, and lead them to the Saviour
Who alone can fashion them in likeness to Himself.
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THE LAY-OUT OF THE BUILDINGS.

The buildings are in three sect ions with th e boys' and girls'
horries on either sid e of t he administrative block and connected
with it by forty f eet of covered-in passage-way which will give
addi tional playing accommodation on wet days. Throughout, the
buildings are of reinfor ced concrete and brick, fir eproof , earth­
qua ke proof, and almost sound-proof. Th ey will r equire very
little maintenance. The princ ipal a im in pla nning t he new Home
ha s been to house the boys and g irls in se parate buildings,
keeping them as fa r as possibl e in units of ten, gro uped
acco rding to their ages, with an attendant in cha rge of eac h un it.

Th e dormitory blocks for both girls and boy s are designed
to accommodate forty children . In each wing th ere are four dor­
mitories containing ten beds apiece. Th ey provide excellent
sleeping accommodation and are so sit ua te d that t hey get the
maximum of sunsh ine. They can be thrown open on two sides
or partially closed when the weather is rough. Two of them
open on to the front balconi es. Each ch ild has a small locker
alongside the bed for personal possessions. Individu al lockers,
wardrobes and box or hat cupboar ds are also provided in bed ­
rooms and in the wide corridors. There are specia l bedrooms in
the administrative block for some twelve or more senior girls ,
who also have a special toilet room and a large common room
allocated to their use.

Spacious re creation or st udy rooms are provided for each
t en ch ildren. Th ese open on to covered porches where the
ch ildren can play in wet weather. Each recreation room will
have its own library of children' s book s graded according to the
ages of the children. Separate bathing, washing and lavatory
acco mmoda t ion is provid ed fo r each group of ten, and the little
ones have been es pecially catered f or. For example the tiny tots
have their own bath and shower room. To avoid stooping by the
attendant a porcelain enamel bath stands at a height of over
three feet from the floor and is supplied with hot and cold water.
All toilet rooms, bath rooms and lavatori es have polished terazzo
floors. The walls are t iled on plaster to a height of four feet six
inches and the floors of the shower rooms are copp er-covered.

There are nin e staff bedrooms so arranged that the
a ttendant in charge of eac h unit is in close touch with the
children at all t imes. The staff have also a sepa ra te sitting
room and bath room in each building, a small service ro om in
each of the two wings, and a sewing room in the administrative
block. The lin en presses are conveniently pla ced . The private
s itting room of the Manager and Matron is sit ua te d on the left
of the vestibule of the main ent r ance and immediately opposite
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THE BOYS' BUNGALOW (see page fourteen).
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WE SHALL NEED
YOUR HELP

TO-MORR OW !

'I Th e Orphan age Tr easu rer
is :

Mr. George Bowron,
Epworth Chamb ers,

Christch urch .

'lR. 9i?ofe o/" CJ:hCl [[el1g e.
Chi ldren of yest erday, heirs of to-lIIorrow ,
Lighten your labour and sweet en your soI"l'ow.
Now, w hile the shu tt les fly fa st er and fa st er
U p and be a t. it, at wo rk [or thc Master.
He sta nds at th e lOOJH-
Rooni for Hint-s-ro om ,

'l;i"vc '1)ou l li ou~# of iI:-;l
W e lose w hat on ourselves w e spen~:::> ': I
TVc ha ve as treasure w ithout end
Wlwtev er , L ord, to Th ee w e lend ,

W ho giv est all.
T¥hat ev er , Lord, w e lend to Thee,
R epaid a thousand-fo ld wi ll be ;
Then gladly will w e give to Th ee,

W ho giv est all.

When doing so reme mber t he need s ' of th e

South I slan d Methodist O rphanage a nd Child ren' s l-Iom e,
at P apanu i, Chr is t chur ch .

I give unto the Treasurer fo r the time being of the South Island Methodist

Or phanage and Children 's Home, at Papanui , Chr istchurc h, the sum of

.... , pounds st er ling to be paid out of my estate, in aid of the said

South Island Methodist Orphanage and Children's Home, now carried on under

the direction of the Confere nce of the Methodist Churc h of -New Zealand, and

for which th e receipt of such Treasu r er shall be a sufficient discharge.
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HELP THE WORK JI
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M r . R. C. JAM IESON

( W H O BUI L T THE N E W H OM E ) .

Mr. M. KERSH A W
(C ON VENER OF THE GRO UNDS

COM MITT E E) .

Mr . W . MBLVILLE L A WRY. A.N .Z.I. A.

(ONE OF OU R AR CHITECTS ).

\

Mis s SARAH USSHER

A NELS ON BENEFACTRESS

( See page 15 ) .

Mr . G. T. L U CAS , A.N. Z.I.A..

(ONE OF OUR AR CH ITBCTS ).

Patjo Tw enty -eig ht
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Copies of this Booklet may be purchased
for One Shilling.

W RI T E TO TH E

i====.======" MET~~D;~;A;~~?F~~~hu~~FICE
:.: CONN EXION AL OF FICE, 176 HER EFORD ST.

ALL PRO CEE DS OF SA LE FOR THE
ORPHANAGE FUNDS .
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